
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
Meeting: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date and Time: Tuesday 29 June 2021 7.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

Enquiries to: Committee Services 
committeeservices@hart.gov.uk 

Members: Axam, Butcher and Wildsmith 

 

Joint Chief Executive CIVIC OFFICES, HARLINGTON WAY 
FLEET, HAMPSHIRE GU51 4AE 

 

AGENDA 
 
This Agenda and associated appendices are provided in electronic form only and 

are published on the Hart District Council Website. 
 

Please download all papers through the Modern.Gov app before the meeting. 
 

1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN   
 
2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence from Members*. 

 
*Note: Members are asked to email Committee Services in advance of the 
meeting as soon as they become aware they will be absent. 
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To declare disclosable, pecuniary and any other interests*. 

 
*Note: Members are asked to email Committee Services in advance of the 
meeting as soon as they become aware they may have an interest to declare. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
 The minutes of the meeting of 21 September 2020 hosted by Rushmoor Borough 

Council are attached to be confirmed and signed as a correct record.  
 

5 URGENT MATTERS   
 
6 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY OF SAFER NORTH HAMPSHIRE STRATEGIC 

COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 2020-21  (Pages 7 - 20) 
 
  Chair’s report 

 Partnership Plan and questions for attendees 
 

7 CONCLUSIONS AND FUTURE MEETINGS   
 
 
Date of Publication:  Monday, 21 June 2021 
 
 

Page 2



Minutes of the Crime and Disorder Joint Scrutiny Committee meeting held remotely 
on Monday, 21st September 2020 at 6.00 pm and hosted by Rushmoor Borough 
Council 

 

Members of the Crime and Disorder Joint Scrutiny Committee in attendance: 
Councillor R Gardiner Basingstoke and Deane BC 
Councillor P Miller Basingstoke and Deane BC 
Councillor C Axam Hart DC 
Councillor S Forster Hart DC 
Councillor P Wildsmith Hart DC 
Councillor D Bedford Rushmoor BC 
Councillor L Jeffers Rushmoor BC 

 
Also Present: 
Paddy Baines Commander, Aldershot Garrison 
Councillor S Bound Deputy Leader, Basingstoke and Deane BC and Chair of 

the Safer North Hampshire Strategic Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP) 

David Colvill Interim Head of Borough Development and Implementation, 
 Basingstoke and Deane BC 
James Knight Community Safety Team Leader, Safer North Hampshire 
David Lipscombe Community Safety Team Leader, Safer North Hampshire  
Jen Lovegrove Hart and Rushmoor District Commander, Hampshire 

Constabulary 
Steve Manley North East Hampshire and Farnham Clinical 

Commissioning Group 
Karen McManus Basingstoke District Commander, Hampshire 

Constabulary 
Councillor James Radley Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate Services, Hart DC 
Councillor Maurice Sheehan Operational Services Portfolio Holder, 

Rushmoor BC 
Daniel White Basingstoke and Deane BC 
Rachael Wilkinson Community Safety Officer, Rushmoor BC 

 

 
1 Appointment of Chair 

 
Councillor Miller was elected as Chair for the 2020/21 municipal year. 

 
2 Apologies for absence and substitutions 

 
Apologies were received from: 

 
Councillor A Crawford (Rushmoor). 
James Duggin – Head of Operational Services, Rushmoor BC 
Kirsty Jenkins – Head of Community Services, Hart DC 
Ryan Thurman – Group Commander for North Hampshire, Hampshire Fire and Rescue 

 
3 Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
Page 3

Agenda Item 4



4 Urgent Matters 

 
There were no urgent matters. 

 

5 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2019 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2019 were confirmed as a correct 
record. 

 
6 Performance review of Safer North Hampshire Strategic Community Safety 

Partnership 2019-20 

 The committee considered the report which provided an overview of the 
performance of the Safer North Hampshire Strategic Community Safety 
Partnership. 

 
The Chair of the CSP introduced the report and highlighted the timeframe and 
priorities of the review. He stated that priorities for 2019/20 had been informed by 
issues identified in the Strategic Assessment 2018/19 and were: 
 
- Anti-social behaviour with a focus on youth related nuisance; 
- Domestic Abuse; 
- Robbery; and 
- Children at risk with a focus on knife/blade related incidents. 

 
It was confirmed that those priorities linked with those contained in the Police and 
Crime Plan 2016-21 and that this had encouraged partnership working. The system 
of partner priority feedback proformas had been used for a second year and these 
had provided good information with which would assist the committee to scrutinise 
the partnership. 
 
It was confirmed that no proforma had been received from Hampshire Council 
Council but that, since that time, contact had been established with an appropriate 
officer. 

 
The Chair clarified that he intended to focus on the appendices to the report and 
would invite partner agencies to present the details of their own proformas.  
 
The committee discussed the proformas submitted by partner agencies.  
 
Shared Community Safety Team 
 
The Community Team Leader explained that, having operated a shared service for 
many years, the community safety teams would revert to being accountable at a 
local level from October 2020. The Community Safety Partnership would continue, 
however, to operate across the three component authorities, meaning that the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee would continue to have a role in scrutinising the activities of the 
Partnership. 
 
It was reported that town centres had been a particular issue in the past year. 
Injunctions had been used in relation to individuals in Basingstoke and Deane and 
Rushmoor. 
 
Team members had continued to go into local schools, mainly through the 
Education Officer. It was noted that the Education Officer role had been jointly 

Page 4



funded across the three authorities and that, as things stood, this would end as the 
teams returned to local control. 

Concern was expressed around the currency of the data used in the report, 
especially with regards to the use of the Strategic Assessment 2018-19. It was 
explained that, whilst the Strategic Assessment had been used to develop the 
Partnership’s broad priorities for 2019-20, day-to-day work was driven by the most 
up to date data. 
 
Hampshire Constabulary – Hart and Rushmoor District 

 

The District Commander provided an overview of the partnership working over 
2019/20 to tackle key priorities. 
 
In response to a question, the District Commander confirmed that data was 
looked at daily or weekly. The Chair of the CSP explained that the data analyst 
monitored data and would raise awareness in relation to identified spikes or 
trends. Whilst a monthly update was produced, it was clarified that the data was 
collected in real time and could, therefore, be broken down as required, including 
to individual days. 
 
The District Commander acknowledged that there had been problems with the 
Police’s 101 system and encouraged people to report local anti-social behaviour 
using the Police’s dedicated web page. 
 
It was confirmed that domestic abuse had been an issue during lockdown and 
that anti-social behaviour had increased since lockdown had been lifted. 

 
Hampshire Constabulary – Basingstoke District 

 
The District Commander informed the committee that many of the priorities and issues 
in Basingstoke were similar to those given in the report concerning the Hart and 
Rushmoor areas. 
 
The District Commander was new in post and was building on good work started under 
her predecessor, especially in the area of children at risk. 
 
Stressed that anti-social behaviour and domestic abuse were prominent issues in rural 
as well as urban areas. 

 

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service 
 

No representative was available from the Hampshire Fire and Rescue but it was 
noted that by the Chairman that a common theme was that emergency services 
staff remained under the threat of attack. 

 
North Hampshire CCG and North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG 

 

Steve Manley, representing the CCG, explained how the lockdown had presented 
considerable challenges, especially in the areas of mental health and domestic 
abuse. The Health Sector had made a deliberate move towards more partnership 
working and this was well demonstrated by the successful joint event held in the 
Aldershot Park ward in Rushmoor. 
 
It was felt that the existing proforma was not a good fit for the work of the CCG and 

Page 5



the Community Safety Team Leader confirmed that this could be looked at to make 
improvements over the coming year. 
 
The Chairman stressed the importance of the health sector in crime and disorder 
matters due to the fact that most victims would end up involved in the care/health 
system. 
 
National Probation Service – Hampshire LDU 
 
No representative from the National Probation Service was available to attend the 
meeting. 
 
Aldershot Garrison 

 
The Commander of the Aldershot Garrison, Col. Paddy Baines, was present at the 
meeting but unable to contribute due to an equipment malfunction. 

 
Resolved: 

 
1) That the committee is satisfied with the performance of the Strategic CSP in 

relation to the discharge of its crime and disorder functions for 2019/20. 
 

2) That the comments of the committee be considered by the respective 
councils. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 7.38 pm. 

 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 6



1 of 8 

Report to Crime and Disorder Joint 
Scrutiny Committee for Safer North 
Hampshire (Basingstoke and Deane, 
Hart and Rushmoor) 

June 2021 

 

Subject: Performance Review of Safer North Hampshire Strategic 
Community Safety Partnership 2020-21 

Status: Routine Matter for Information 
Report ref:  
Ward(s): All 
Key Decision: No 
Key Decision / Ref:  

Report of: Strategic Safer North Hampshire Community Safety 
Partnership  

Contact: Cllr Simon Bound (BDBC) – Chair of the CSP 
 

Appendices: 
1. Chair’s Report 
2. Partnership Plan 2020 - 23 
3. Community Safety Partnership membership 

Papers relied on to 
produce this report: 

1. Partnership Plan 2020 – 23 
2. Strategic Community Safety Partnership Chair’s 

Report 
  
1 Executive Summary  

1.1 The attached report presents an overview of the performance of the Strategic 
Safer North Hampshire Community Safety Partnership. It is presented for 
consideration by the Crime and Disorder Joint Scrutiny Committee, comprising 
members from Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council, Hart District Council 
and Rushmoor Borough Council, which was set up in accordance with section 
19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006.  

2 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that: 
2.1.1 the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews the performance of the 

Strategic CSP in relation to the discharge of its statutory functions as defined 
by section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, and  

2.1.2 the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee members summarise the findings 
and any recommendations of the annual meeting for the respective councils to 
consider at their own Overview and Scrutiny panels. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



2 of 8 

PRIORITIES, IMPACTS AND RISKS 
 
Contribution to Council Priorities 
This report accords to the relevant Council Plan priorities as follows:  

• Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council Plan 2020 - 24: Improving Safety 

• Hart District Council Corporate Plan 2017 - 22: work with partners to keep Hart 
clean, green and safe 

• Rushmoor Borough Council Business Plan 2020 - 23: Work with our partners to 
help people feel safe 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Term Definition 
CSP Community Safety Partnership 
SNH Safer North Hampshire  
ASB Antisocial behaviour 

 
MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

3 Background 

3.1 The Safer North Hampshire Strategic Community Safety Partnership 
(hereinafter referred to as the CSP) was established in March 2015 following 
the merger of 3 separate CSPs operating in Basingstoke and Deane, Hart and 
Rushmoor. The requirements of the Police and Justice Act 2006 include an 
obligation for every local authority to have ‘a crime and disorder committee 
with power to a) review or scrutinise decisions made, or other actions taken, in 
connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities and of their crime 
and disorder functions; b) to make reports or recommendations to the local 
authority with respect to the discharge of those functions’. 

3.2 Where CSPs operate beyond the boundary of just one local authority, the 
legislation requires that the local authorities establish a joint overview and 
scrutiny committee to discharge the duties under the Police and Justice Act 
2006 with regard to the decisions and functions of the one CSP. 

3.3 The Chair of the CSP, members representing the statutory bodies during 
2020-21, and represetnatives from each Council’s community safety teambe 
present at the meeting, to respond to questions from the committee in relation 
to the Partnership Plan submitted as Appendix 2. 

3.4 The committee is invited to consider the activity undertaken by the CSP as 
part of the Partnership Plan 2020 - 23 in relation to discharging its crime and 

Page 8



3 of 8 

disorder obligations for 2020-21 and summarise its findings for the respective 
councils. 

4 Purpose and activities of the Safer North Hampshire Strategic 
Community Safety Partnership  

4.1 The purpose of the Safer North Hampshire Strategic CSP is ‘to ensure 
strategic commitment and joint working to achieve reductions in crime and the  

4.2 fear of crime, to reduce the harmful consequences of drug and alcohol 
misuse, and reduce youth offending and antisocial behaviour.” 

The key activities of the strategic CSP are:  

a) To ensure commitment and engagement to the CSP from statutory and 
non-statutory agencies, ensuring delivery at an operational level in line 
with the Strategic Assessment and Partnership priorities. 

b) To accept the findings and adopt the annual Strategic Assessment which 
informs the overarching strategic objectives for community safety;  

c) To receive and acknowledge the findings of the 6-month review of the 
Strategic Assessment priorities to ensure that they are still the same and 
resources are being directed appropriately;  

d) To agree the Partnership Plan developed which will drive project and 
programme delivery across the Safer North Hampshire area over the 
coming three year period;   

e) To manage the performance of approved activities and endorse strategic 
action required to tackle barriers to success where identified; and  

f) To identify synergies between the objectives identified in the Police and 
Crime Plan and the CSP priorities. 

4.3 The priorities for 2020-23, which were informed by the issues identified in the 
Strategic Assessment 2019-20, were: 

• Serious violence, including knife/blade offences and robbery 
• Youth related antisocial behaviour 
• Crimes with historically low levels of reporting 

 
4.4 The Police and Crime Plan 2016 -21 priorities are:  

• Championing Community Needs 

• Reduce Reoffending 

• Partnerships 

• Provide operationally effective policing  

5 Corporate Implications 

5.1 Financial Implications 

5.1.1 As of October 2020, the shared community safety team ceased with each 
authority providing their own local community safety staff. There will still be 
several shared areas of work, including administering of the CSP. 

Page 9



4 of 8 

5.1.2 Each of the three local authorities contributes to the costs of a shared analyst 
who produces various documents in order to aid the work of the individual 
community safety teams. 

5.2 Risk Issues 

5.2.1 The CSP and its constituent partners constantly assess risk in the 
consideration of priorities and the delivery of activities – for example, there are 
judgements to be made when weighing up the obligations relating to 
information sharing against the need for data protection.  

5.3 HR Issues 

5.4 None.  

5.5 Equalities 

5.5.1 Public authorities have a Public Sector Equalities Duty under the Equality Act 
2010 to consider and address equality issues in all their functions, insofar as is 
relevant and proportionate.  

5.5.2 The work of the CSP seeks to mitigate any adverse impact on any of the 
protected characteristic groups, particularly those of vulnerable people and 
victims, of crime and anti-social behaviour. This work supports the main aims 
of the general duty to: promote equality, eliminate discrimination and foster 
good relations. 

5.6 Legal Implications 

5.6.1 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires that all local 
authorities have a duty to consider crime and disorder implications.  

5.6.2 There is a statutory requirement for a CSP covering each local authority area 
which has been fulfilled by having one CSP for North Hampshire.   

5.6.3 Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 requires that every local 
authority has a committee with power to review or scrutinise decisions made, 
or other action taken, in connection with the discharge by the responsible 
authorities of their crime and disorder functions and to make reports or 
recommendations to the local authority with respect to the discharge of those 
functions.  

5.7 Any Other Implications 

5.7.1 The work of the CSP contributes to health and wellbeing outcomes through 
improved joint working to support vulnerable people, particularly with regard to 
people who are homeless or are experiencing mental health issues. 
Community safety initiatives on environmental issues also help to improve the 
way people feel about living in their local area.   

Page 10



5 of 8 

6 Communication and Consultation 

6.1 There are a number of campaigns scheduled through the year to increase 
awareness of risks and how to remain safe as well as regular local press 
releases on relevant issues. 

6.2 Safer North Hampshire has a digital presence in the form of; website, 
Facebook and Twitter to share any relevant partnership press releases and 
information. 

6.3 As of October 2020 and the cessation of the shared community safety team, 
press is managed at a local level unless it relates to a Community Safety 
Partnership matter.  

7 Conclusion 

7.1 The Safer North Hampshire CSP continue to deliver against their statutory 
duty as defined in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  However, the strategic 
partnership continually seek improvements and make every effort to ensure 
that performance and delivery are the best they can be. 

  

Page 11



6 of 8 

APPENDICES 

APPENDIX 1 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Chair’s Report for Overview and Scrutiny 

13.05.2021 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Hart, Rushmoor and Basingstoke and Deane Councils began working together to 
deliver community safety under the banner of Safer North Hampshire in 
2012.  Following a review of the service, the partnership formally merged in March 
2015. 
 

1.2 The Joint CSP sits across all three areas to deliver its statutory duties in relation 
to Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  This states that it is the duty of 
each authority to do all that it reasonably can in partnership to prevent, 

 
a) Crime and disorder in its area 
b) The misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its areas 
c) Re-offending in its area 

 
1.3 As set out in the terms of reference, the Joint CSP must; 

 
• Undertake an annual Strategic Assessment to inform the overarching strategic 

objectives for community safety 
• Undertake reviews of the Strategic Assessment priorities to ensure that they 

are still the same and resources are being directed appropriately 
• Work in partnership to develop a Partnership Plan which will drive project and 

programme delivery across the Safer North Hampshire area over the coming 
year 

• Deliver a robust response to Anti-Social Behaviour 
• Manage the performance of approved activities and endorse strategic action 

required to tackle barriers to success where identified 
• Work alongside the objectives identified in the Police and Crime Plan. 

 
1.4 The purpose of this Overview and Scrutiny Committee is: 

 
• To scrutinise decisions made or other action taken, in connection with the 

discharge of the crime and disorder functions by the Joint CSP 
• To monitor and review the performance of the Joint CSP 
• To make reports or recommendations to the Local Authorities and Joint CSP 

with respect to the discharge of the crime and disorder functions 
• To review the Partnership Plan 2020 - 23 
• The committee shall prepare an annual report for the Councils 

Page 12



7 of 8 

 
 

2.0 OVERVIEW AND TRENDS 
 

2.1 The role of the Joint CSP is to adopt the annual Strategic Assessment. However, 
it is recognised that the data sets used to inform the process are owned by the 
various organisations who are individually held to account. That said, an overview 
of crime and ASB trends for the year 2020/21 year being scrutinised is appropriate 
to set the scene. 
 

2.2 The crime reporting year 2020/21 was a year like no other.  In March 2020 the 
nation entered into the first of its full lockdowns due to the Coronavirus Pandemic 
with the next twelve months seeing large periods of restrictions on working and 
socialising. On the one hand, this led to more people being at home, limited to no 
night-time economy, reduced footfall in town centres and other previously thriving 
locations.  

 
2.3 On the other hand, people spending more time at home, becoming more aware of 

their surroundings, children being out of education, families spending more time 
together in pressurised circumstances and people being out of work increased the 
potential for conflict in some circumstances. Some crime types have experienced 
reductions, some have increased, and while Police and partner agencies have 
continued to work tirelessly to make communities safer, the restrictions bought 
about by COVID will have undoubtedly impacted these figures. 

 
2.4 In 2020/21 crime rates reduced considerably. Across the Safer North Hampshire 

20,415 crimes were recorded, which was 20% (n4,959) fewer than the 25,374 
recorded in 2019/20. 5,540 incidents of anti-social behaviour were recorded in 
2020/21, a reduction of 6% (n366) on the previous year when 5,906 incidents 
were reported. 
 

2.5 The Strategic Assessment continues to support priorities of youth related 
antisocial behaviour, knife and blade related offences with a specific focus on 
robbery and crimes with historically low levels of reporting. 

 
 

3.0 ACHIEVEMENTS 
 

3.1 The Joint CSP is always looking for ways to develop and improve and, over the 
past year, has made a lot of progress. 

 
3.2 As of 2020/21 the CSP sought create a three-yearly Partnership Plan, with an 

annual light touch review in order to allow longer term more focused goals. 
 

3.3 In October 2020 the shared community safety team ceased with the officer 
function returning to each individual authority. Each authority has successfully 
recruited to the teams and set up a number of appropriate internal processes. 

Page 13



8 of 8 

Whilst the main bulk of work is carried out at each council individually, there are 
regular meetings between officers from each authority in order to coordinate the 
work of the CSP and share best practice. 

 
3.4 Hampshire Police along with key partners including Basingstoke and Deane 

Borough Council achieved a significant milestone in securing a gang injunction 
against the Basingstoke Street Gang. The wider CSP are now monitoring 
progress on this along with the impact this will have on county lines, serious 
violence and exploitation across the wider area. 

 
3.5 Covid-19 had a significant impact on all partners during 2020/21, requiring a re-

think of key working practices as well as partners ensuring continued shared effort 
to tackle priorities. 

 

4.0 MOVING FORWARD 
 
 

4.1 The Joint CSP will work to improve member knowledge and understanding and 
improve accountability through attendance, actions and tasking.  

 
 

4.2 The Joint CSP will seek to engage significantly with the Hampshire Violence 
Reduction Unit in the coming year in order to assist in addressing significant 
issues around violence, in particular in Basingstoke and Deane and Rushmoor 
boroughs. 
 

4.3 As chair, I also believe it is important to forge closer working links with the Office 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) to ensure projects initiated locally 
and centrally work well together and that the local needs, delivery considerations 
and priorities are considered. With the election of Donna Jones as PCC we will 
seek to engage and ensure understanding of the unique issues facing the CSP 
area. 

 
4.4 It is also important that the Partnership responds to the challenges presented by 

Covid-19 and ensures any ad-hoc interventions required as a result are put in 
place promptly. 

Page 14



Aims
Work with partners and the Violence Reduction Unit 
to understand root causes driving knife and blade 
incidents locally and establish a coordinated response

Serious violence, including knife/
blade offences and robbery

Crimes with historically low  
levels of reporting

Youth related antisocial behaviour

Aims
Identify opportunities for early intervention with young 
people committing antisocial behaviour to reduce 
number going on to commit further high harm offences

Community Safety  
Partnership Plan  

2020-2023

Aims
Offences with historically low levels of reporting 
should be looked at as a priority including hate 
crime, domestic abuse, sexual offences, child 
abuse and fraud. Consideration should be given 
to any barriers to reporting, why these exist and 
how to remove them.

Data is taken from the 2019/20 Strategic Assessment (covering April 2019 – March 2020) as published in September 2020.

Statistics
•	� Knife/blade crime up 99% 

in 5 years generally

•	�� Offences up 7% in SNH 
area specifically

•	� 22% of robberies involved 
use of blade/knife

 
 

Statistics
•	� Domestic crimes account for 15% of total  

crime in SNH area

•	� Domestic crimes increased 5% in Basingstoke  
and 3% in Rushmoor

•	� Hate crime offences up by 3% in SNH area  
– 16% in Basingstoke and 2% in Rushmoor

Statistics
•	� Reported instances of ASB 

decreased by 17%

•	� 70% of ASB incidents classed 
as “ASB community”

•	� Approx 25% of ASB in key 
areas across SNH classed as 
youth related

P
age 15



Appendix 2b 
Safer North Hampshire Community Safety Partnership Plan 2020 – 23 
Ongoing work to tackle priorities as identified via the Strategic Assessment 
 

Project Narrative Local Authority area Statutory Agencies Other Agencies Priorities Met 
 

Evidence Base 

BDBC HDC RBC SV YASB LLR 
Tactical High Harm 
Drugs Panel 

Police led multi-agency panel 
managing plans for tackling high 
harm drugs issues in Hart and 
Rushmoor 

   

RBC, HDC, HC, YOT Housing Associations 

   
Meeting minutes 
Completed actions 
Case reviews 

Fortress Police led operational meeting 
tackling addresses known to be 
involved in high harm drugs issue 

   
HC, RBC, HDC, BDBC Housing Associations 

   
 

Neighbourhood Watch 
Panel 

Monthly information sharing 
meeting    BDBC, RBC, HC Neighbourhood Watch     

Quarterly Performance 
Meeting 

Council multi-agency meeting 
evaluating local crime rates, 
identifying hotspots and action 
planning to tackle local issues 

   

RBC, HDC, HC, HFRS Neighbourhood Watch 
Business Improvement District 

   
 

Vulnerabilities 
Operational Group / ASB 
Panel 

Monthly Council multi-agency 
panel aimed at tackling vulnerable 
individuals and ASB referrals 

   
RBC, HDC, BDBC, HC, 
HFRS, YOT 

Housing Associations 
Third sector charities    

 

Domestic Abuse Forum 
(Hart and Rushmoor, 
Basingstoke) 

Partnership forum sharing best 
practice, expertise and training 
opportunities 

   
RBC, HDC, BDBC Housing Associations 

Third sector charities    
 

Police Monthly Tactical 
Planning Meeting / Daily 
Management Meeting 

Monthly priority setting for Police / 
Daily policing update    

RBC, HDC, BDBC, HC Army 
   

 

Yateley Town Council – 
Knife Surrender Bin 

Yateley Town Council have 
agreed to secure a permanent 
knife surrender bin to their 
property. 

   

HC, HDC Yateley Town Council 

   

 

Op Sceptre – British 
Transport Police co-
working 

Hart & Rushmoor police work in 
collaboration with BTP for overt 
policing operations at railway 
station as part of the Op Sceptre 
knife crime initiative 

   

HC British Transport Police 

   

 

Op Sceptre – Rushmoor 
police work with local 
schools 

Knife crime awareness operation 
held at Alderwood School as part 
of Op Sceptre involving overt 
knife arch and searches 

   

HC Alderwood school 

   

 

Hart & Rushmoor police 
refreshed the School 
Charter initiative 

The School Charter provides local 
schools with an agreed “contract” 
with their local policing team 
regarding frequency of visits. 

   

HC, RBC, HDC Schools across both local 
authority areas 

   

 

Mentoring scheme 
developed with the 
Shots Academy 

Insp Troman and RBC 
Community Safety is working with 
the Shots Academy (Aldershot 
FC) to organise a mentoring 
scheme for local youths, and 
linking in with the local mosque in 
St George’s Road, Aldershot. 

   

HC, RBC Aldershot Football Club 

   

 

P
age 16



Appendix 2b 
Insp Lovegrove working 
with Frogmore 
Community College to 
prevent children 
becoming involved with 
crime 

Pop-up events have been 
planned in partnership with the 
college. 

   

HC, HDC Frogmore Community College 

   

 

Insp Lovegrove working 
with Mildmay Oaks 

Due to an increase in reports from 
both patients and staff, often 
involving hate related incidents, 
Insp Lovegrove in working with 
the management team at Mildmay 
Oakes 

   

HC Mildmay Oakes, West 
Hampshire CCG 

   

 

HDC offering a heavily 
subsidised interactive 
‘Drugs Bus’ to year 7 
students across Hart. 

Schools will be offered for year 7 
students to attend an interactive 
experience including a mock-up 
‘crack den’ and replica prison cell 
to open discussion of the risks of 
CCE and the consequences. 

   

HC, HDC Hart Secondary Schools 

   

 

HDC commissioned 
Youth Detached work to 
engage with youths in 
Yateley/Derby Green 
areas to reduce ASB 
and increase CPI 
reporting for prevention 
of CCE. 

Detached workers go out on 
weekend evenings and engage 
with youths around a range of 
issues to raise their awareness of 
risks and the impacts of 
involvement in CCE/CSE, crime 
and ASB. 

   

HDC Vision 4 Youth 

   

 

Safe At Home Both Hart and Rushmoor police 
were involved in the Safe At 
Home initiative over the Covid 19 
lockdown period.  This involved 
officers working at local 
supermarkets to offer domestic 
abuse advice. 

   

HC A number of supermarkets 
across the two local authority 
areas. 

   

 

“Your View” stop and 
search security initiative 

Hart & Rushmoor police have 
been a pilot area for a new 
initiative, Your View, where in 
collaboration with Farnborough 
Tech College a number of young 
people have been asked to help 
with scrutiny of police stop and 
search powers 

   

HC Farnborough Tech College 

   

 

Hate Crime Awareness 
Week 

Rushmoor police worked with 
Rushmoor CAB to produce 
several YouTube videos, one in 
Nepalese, to raise awareness 
around hate crime reporting 
processes 

   

HC Rushmoor CAB 

   

 

Basingstoke Street Gang Partnership work to secure gang 
injunction to control behaviour of 
an identified urban street gang 
involved in violence and drugs 
supply. Ongoing work to ensure 
compliance. 

   

HC, BDBC, YOT, CSD, 
Education, 
CRC/Probation(?) 

 

   

 

P
age 17



Appendix 2b 
Basingstoke Hate Crime 
Working Group 

Working group to set up to raise 
awareness, encourage reporting 
and increase confidence of 
victims. 

   

BDBC, HC CAB, BVA, BMF, BUAR and 
other community groups 

   

 

Op MET meeting Multi-agency meeting regarding 
children at risk of exploitation.    

HC, BDBC, HDC, RBC, 
YOT 

 
   

 

Building Better 
Relationships 
Programme 

30 session programme (24 
groupwork sessions) for men who 
have offences and a history of 
Domestic Abuse  The men must 
be directed by a court order . 
Partners are supported by a 
partner link worker 

   

HIOW CRC  

   

Research has evidenced its 
effectiveness 

Creating Safer 
Relationships  

1:1 Domestic Abuse intervention 
for anyone under probation 
supervision. Up to 14 sessions 

   
HIOW CRC  

   
Theoretical model is based 
on the latest research 

Integrated Offender 
Management 

Multi-agency approach (police, 
probation, substance misuse 
service) to managing people 
mainly those who commit serious 
acquisitive crime but there is the 
option to include an individual 
who is making a serious negative 
impact on the local community. 
Must be under probation 
supervision (NPS or CRC) 

   

HIOW CRC 
HC 
NPS 

Society of St James 

   

 

Knife Crime Intervention 8 sessions delivered in a small 
group for people on probation 
whose offences have included 
possession of a knife. Sessions 
explore the reasons for 
involvement in knife crime and 
work towards facilitating positive 
change 

   

HIOW CRC  

   

PCC funded pilot may not 
continue) 

Schools Education Educating school pupils on the 
dangers of fire and general road 
safety. 

   
HIWFRS  

   
 

Fire Cadets Role modelling, fire safety 
awareness, road safety education    

HIWFRS  
   

 

Safe and Well Visits Supporting vulnerable people, fire 
safety education, health related 
aspects for referral to partners 

   
HIWFRS  

   
 

Healthier Communities 
Project 

Improving wellbeing in area of 
derivation where there are poorer 
outcomes, First phase Buckskin, 
focus youth and young families.  
Impacts from this project may 
contribute to reducing violence 
and anti-social behaviour  

   

CCG (North)  HHFT, CCG, District Council, 
HCC, housing, voluntary 
sector and local 
residents/patients  

  

 

Stakeholder meetings 
Community participation  

Launch of Sage Haven 
(Aug 2021) 

7 day a week evening service for 
people in mental health crisis     

CCG (North)  Andover Mind and SHFT     Patient outcomes  

P
age 18



Appendix 2b 
 
 
Priorities Key: 
SV – Serious violence, including knife/blade offences and robbery 
YASB – Youth related antisocial behaviour 
LLR – Crimes with historically low levels of reporting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agency Key: 
RBC – Rushmoor Borough Council 
HDC – Hart District Council 
BDBC – Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council 
HC – Hampshire Constabulary 
YOT – Youth Offending Team 
HCC – Hampshire County Council 
HIWFRS – Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service 
CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group 
HIOWCRC – Hampshire & Isle of Wight Community Rehabilitation Company 
SWNPS – South West National Probation Service 
Army – British Army 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



Appendix 3 

Community Safety Partnership Membership 

Local authorities will have 1 vote each along with statutory partners. 
 
Co-opted members are currently Army and Fire and are unable to vote. 
 

• Hart District Council (Portfolio Holder and 1 Officer) 
• Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council (Portfolio Holder and 1 Officer) 
• Rushmoor Borough Council (Portfolio Holder and 1 Officer) 
• Hampshire Constabulary 
• Hampshire County Council (I Elected Member and 1 Officer) 
• Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
• Clinical Commissioning Group (1 Officer) 
• South West National Probation Service (1 Officer) 
• Hampshire and Isle of Wight Community Rehabilitation Company (1 

Officer) 
 
A total of 9 votes are available. 
 
The Partnership can, by consensus, co-opt additional members to the partnership. 
Such membership will be reviewed on an annual basis. 
 

Page 20


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY OF SAFER NORTH HAMPSHIRE STRATEGIC COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 2020-21
	Joint CSP OS Report - June 2021
	1 Executive Summary
	1.1 The attached report presents an overview of the performance of the Strategic Safer North Hampshire Community Safety Partnership. It is presented for consideration by the Crime and Disorder Joint Scrutiny Committee, comprising members from Basingst...

	2 Recommendation
	2.1 It is recommended that:
	2.1.1 the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews the performance of the Strategic CSP in relation to the discharge of its statutory functions as defined by section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, and
	2.1.2 the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee members summarise the findings and any recommendations of the annual meeting for the respective councils to consider at their own Overview and Scrutiny panels.


	3 Background
	3.1 The Safer North Hampshire Strategic Community Safety Partnership (hereinafter referred to as the CSP) was established in March 2015 following the merger of 3 separate CSPs operating in Basingstoke and Deane, Hart and Rushmoor. The requirements of ...
	3.2 Where CSPs operate beyond the boundary of just one local authority, the legislation requires that the local authorities establish a joint overview and scrutiny committee to discharge the duties under the Police and Justice Act 2006 with regard to ...
	3.3 The Chair of the CSP, members representing the statutory bodies during 2020-21, and represetnatives from each Council’s community safety teambe present at the meeting, to respond to questions from the committee in relation to the Partnership Plan ...
	3.4 The committee is invited to consider the activity undertaken by the CSP as part of the Partnership Plan 2020 - 23 in relation to discharging its crime and disorder obligations for 2020-21 and summarise its findings for the respective councils.

	4 Purpose and activities of the Safer North Hampshire Strategic Community Safety Partnership
	4.1 The purpose of the Safer North Hampshire Strategic CSP is ‘to ensure strategic commitment and joint working to achieve reductions in crime and the
	4.2 fear of crime, to reduce the harmful consequences of drug and alcohol misuse, and reduce youth offending and antisocial behaviour.”
	The key activities of the strategic CSP are:
	a) To ensure commitment and engagement to the CSP from statutory and non-statutory agencies, ensuring delivery at an operational level in line with the Strategic Assessment and Partnership priorities.
	b) To accept the findings and adopt the annual Strategic Assessment which informs the overarching strategic objectives for community safety;
	c) To receive and acknowledge the findings of the 6-month review of the Strategic Assessment priorities to ensure that they are still the same and resources are being directed appropriately;
	d) To agree the Partnership Plan developed which will drive project and programme delivery across the Safer North Hampshire area over the coming three year period;
	e) To manage the performance of approved activities and endorse strategic action required to tackle barriers to success where identified; and
	f) To identify synergies between the objectives identified in the Police and Crime Plan and the CSP priorities.
	4.3 The priorities for 2020-23, which were informed by the issues identified in the Strategic Assessment 2019-20, were:
	4.4 The Police and Crime Plan 2016 -21 priorities are:

	5 Corporate Implications
	5.1 Financial Implications
	5.1.1 As of October 2020, the shared community safety team ceased with each authority providing their own local community safety staff. There will still be several shared areas of work, including administering of the CSP.
	5.1.2 Each of the three local authorities contributes to the costs of a shared analyst who produces various documents in order to aid the work of the individual community safety teams.

	5.2 Risk Issues
	5.2.1 The CSP and its constituent partners constantly assess risk in the consideration of priorities and the delivery of activities – for example, there are judgements to be made when weighing up the obligations relating to information sharing against...

	5.3 HR Issues
	5.4 None.
	5.5 Equalities
	5.5.1 Public authorities have a Public Sector Equalities Duty under the Equality Act 2010 to consider and address equality issues in all their functions, insofar as is relevant and proportionate.
	5.5.2 The work of the CSP seeks to mitigate any adverse impact on any of the protected characteristic groups, particularly those of vulnerable people and victims, of crime and anti-social behaviour. This work supports the main aims of the general duty...

	5.6 Legal Implications
	5.6.1 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires that all local authorities have a duty to consider crime and disorder implications.
	5.6.2 There is a statutory requirement for a CSP covering each local authority area which has been fulfilled by having one CSP for North Hampshire.
	5.6.3 Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 requires that every local authority has a committee with power to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their ...

	5.7 Any Other Implications
	5.7.1 The work of the CSP contributes to health and wellbeing outcomes through improved joint working to support vulnerable people, particularly with regard to people who are homeless or are experiencing mental health issues. Community safety initiati...


	6 Communication and Consultation
	6.1 There are a number of campaigns scheduled through the year to increase awareness of risks and how to remain safe as well as regular local press releases on relevant issues.
	6.2 Safer North Hampshire has a digital presence in the form of; website, Facebook and Twitter to share any relevant partnership press releases and information.
	6.3 As of October 2020 and the cessation of the shared community safety team, press is managed at a local level unless it relates to a Community Safety Partnership matter.

	7 Conclusion
	7.1 The Safer North Hampshire CSP continue to deliver against their statutory duty as defined in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  However, the strategic partnership continually seek improvements and make every effort to ensure that performance and de...


	Appendix 2a
	Appendix 2b
	Appendix 3


